
Meeting of:  Heywood Township Committee
Date: Monday 26th June 2017
Time: 6.30 pm
Venue: Phoenix Centre - L/Cpl Stephen Shaw MC Way,  

Heywood, OL10 1LR

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  CIVIC PRAYERS 

2.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

4.  APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR FOR 2017/2018 

The Township Committee will be requested to appoint a Vice-Chair 
for the 2017/18 Municipal Year.

5.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

6.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

7.  OPEN FORUM 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise 
any issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the 
Township. 

Public Document Pack



8.  MINUTES 3 - 7

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Heywood Township 
Committee held on 20th March 2017. 

9.  HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP DELEGATION ARRANGEMENTS AND 
APPOINTMENTS 2017/18 

8 - 11

The Township Committee will be requested to confirm its delegation 
arrangements and appointments for 2017/18.

10.  OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER - BRADSHAW 
STREET AND VALE STREET, HEYWOOD 

12 - 23

The Township Committee will be requested to consider objections to 
a proposed traffic regulation order on Bradshaw Street and Vale 
Street, Heywood.

11.  HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REVIEW 24 - 52

The Township Committee will be requested to consider a review of 
funding allocated in 2016/2017.

 

Heywood Township Committee

Councillor Jacqueline Beswick Councillor Ray Dutton
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Alan McCarthy Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Linda Robinson Councillor Peter Rush
Councillor Carol Wardle

For more information about this meeting, please contact 

Alison James
Senior Governance and Committee Services Officer
Telephone: 01706 924711
Email: alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk 



HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday 20th March 2017

PRESENT:  Councillor Peter Rush (Chair); Councillors Beswick, Dutton, 
Susan Emmott, Malcolm, McCarthy, O'Rourke, Robinson and Wardle

OFFICERS:  J. Rooney (Assistant Director - Information, Customers and 
Communities), S. Hay, D. Lodwig, A. Webster and V. White (Neighbourhoods 
Directorate), P. Gregory (Economy Directorate), D. Higgins (Children’s 
Services Directorate) and A. James (Resources Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:   Chief Inspector Nicholas Hill, Inspector Andrew 
Fern and Sergeant Paul Wood (Greater Manchester Police) and 
approximately 18 members of the public

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
51 There were no declarations of interest.

OPEN FORUM
52 The following matters were raised as part of the Open Forum:-

a) Former Mossfield School Site – Bamford Road

In response to a question from Mr H Downham-Clarke about the status of the 
former Mossfield School site on Bamford Road, the Township and 
Engagement Officer read out a response from the Director of Economy which 
advised that the developer who had won the competitive process for 
developing the site had withdrawn from the scheme due to the adjacent 
supermarket, Morrisons withdrawing their support for the scheme. 

A number of alternative proposals were being looked at for the site including 
the potential for the Council to develop the site. An update on progress would 
be presented to the Township Committee in due course.

b) Siddal Farm – Middleton Road

Mr H Downham-Clark raised the issue of access to footpaths in the vicinity of 
Siddal Farm, Middleton Road, some of which were disputed.

The Hopwood Hall Ward Councillors agreed to pursue this matter with the 
Council’s Legal Service and Planning Service.

c) Friends of Queens Park

In response to a question from Ms Y Mills about communication between the 
Council and the Friends of Queens Park in regard to matters such as repairs 
to the theatre and the café, the Chair, Councillor Rush informed the 
Committee that he had relayed the latest information that he had to the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 8



Friends’ Group. The North Ward Councillors agreed to look into issues 
relating to unanswered emails about matters affecting the park.

d) Birch Village

The Township and Engagement Officer reported that several written questions 
had been submitted by Mr G Louden relating to issues with HGV movements 
in the Hopwood area. A written response would be sent direct to Mr Louden.

e) Rochdale Road East – Traffic Issues

Mr P Hopely and other residents of Rochdale Road East raised a number of 
concerns about traffic on Rochdale Road East including the condition of the 
road surface, the speed of traffic and amount of HGV’s using the road and 
causing properties to shake. The issues had been exacerbated by the night 
time closures at Junction 19 of the M62 when traffic was using Rochdale 
Road East as a diversion route.

The Head of Highways was requested to look into potential solutions including 
improved signage, the condition of the road surface and report back to the 
North Ward Councillors as soon as possible. The Police agreed to see if a 
temporary speed camera could be deployed in the area.

f) Alley Gates – Rochdale Road East/Chadwick Lane

A local resident advised of on ongoing issues following the installation of alley 
gates at Rochdale Road East/Chadwick Lane which were causing residents 
problems including difficulties with parking.

The Assistant Director – Information, Customers and Communities agreed to 
look into the matters raised.

PRESENTATION - EAST LANCASHIRE RAILWAY
53 The Township Committee received a presentation from Mr Mike Kelly, 
Chair of the East Lancashire Railway (ELR) Trust Board about future 
developments for the Heywood Station site. Mr Kelly also referred to the 
setting up of a Rochdale Council Officer Group who would be looking a 
refreshing the Heywood Station masterplan. 

Future plans for Heywood Station included:-
 Being part of the Heywood in Bloom display sites;
 The opening of the refreshment coach and children’s play area at 

Easter Time;
 Looking at car parking provision near the site;
 Developing the offer around the site to encourage more visitors.

Members of the Committee welcomed the developments at Heywood Station 
and requested that communications about events from the ELR be looked at 
as it was felt they currently placed too much emphasis on Heywood Station 
being used for free car parking.

Page 4



Mr Kelly was thanked for attending the meeting and making the presentation 
on behalf of the East Lancashire Railway.

PRESENTATION - POSSABILITIES
54 The Township Committee received a presentation from Mr Malcolm 
McClean from PossAbilities about the organisation securing a £10,000 grant 
from the Big Lottery Celebrate Fund to create a ‘Monkeytown Trail’ of nine 
monkeys around Heywood. Schools would be invited to adopt a monkey and 
work with artists to create a unique design for each one. The trail would take 
people on a three-mile walk in and around Heywood, beginning and ending at 
the Cherwell Wellbeing Garden & Farm.

Mr McClean was thanked for attending the meeting and his presentation 
about the PossAbilities ‘Monkeytown Monkey Trail’ project.

MINUTES - HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE
55 The Minutes of the meeting of the Heywood Township Committee held 
on 9th January 2017 were considered.

DECIDED – that subject to the deletion of the words “on a leasehold 
basis” in Minute No’s 48 and 50 that the Minutes of the meeting held on 
9th January 2017 be approved as a correct record.

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP HIGHWAYS WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18
56 The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which requested the Committee to note and approve the 
highways work programmes which were proposed to take place during the 
2017-2018 financial year for Heywood Township.

The programmes were appended to the submitted report and included the 
following:-

 Year 2 of the 2016 - 2018 Approved Highways Maintenance 
Programme; 

 2017-18 Patching Programme;
 2017-18 Drainage Repair Programme; 
 2017-18 Bridges and Structures Maintenance Programme;

The recommendations were put forward as Members had already approved 
year 2 of the 2016/18 two year highways maintenance programme. 

The remaining programmes had been identified by using asset management 
good practice which was deemed by the Department of Transport (DfT) to be 
the most efficient way of managing highways assets. 

No alternatives programmes had been considered as part of the process. The 
programmes had been put together using the principles of asset management 
with the aim of improving the Townships assets in the most efficient way 
possible.  

Page 5



DECIDED – (1) that Year 2 of the 2016 -2018 Approved Highways 
Maintenance Programme be noted;
(2) that the 2017-18 Patching Programme be brought back to a future 
meeting of the Township Committee following a review of the schemes 
by Members;
(3) that the 2017-18 Drainage Repair Programme be approved as detailed 
in the submitted report;
(4) that the 2017-18 Bridges and Structures Maintenance Programme be 
approved as detailed in the submitted report;
(5) Where events external to the Council require a rapid response or 
agreement in principle, the committee authorises the Head of Highways 
to vary the programme in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Housing and Environment and the Chair of the Township committee.

Eligible for call in - yes

DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS LAND ADJACENT TO 82 ASPINALL STREET, 
HEYWOOD
57 The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of 
Economy which sought approval for the release of land adjacent to 82 
Aspinall Street, Heywood for disposal as set out in the plan at appended to 
the submitted report at Appendix 1.

The recommendations were put forward as the site is 0.01 hectares (0.02 
acres) in size and is defined in the Unitary Development Plan (UDP) as 
‘Defined Urban Area’. The site is comprised of a vacant piece of land adjacent 
to a terraced property at 82 Aspinall Street. The site was the clearance site of 
a former end terrace house which had subsequently been grassed over. 

Initial talks with Planners had highlighted that residential development of the 
site would be supported. 

In terms of alternatives, the site could be retained for its current use. 
Retention of the site would not secure a capital receipt or beneficial 
development and would not reduce the Council’s financial liabilities. 

The site was currently vacant. Retaining the site in its current use carried the 
risk of liabilities such as fly-tipping, anti-social behaviour and regular or ad hoc 
maintenance obligations.

DECIDED – (1) that the land adjacent to 82 Aspinall Street (as detailed in 
the plan appended to the submitted report at Appendix 1) be declared 
surplus to the Council’s requirements and be released for disposal;

(2) that the Head of Legal Services be requested to carry out the 
necessary legal work in connection with the disposal;

(3) that the purchaser be required to pay the Council’s legal and 
surveyor’s costs.

Page 6



Eligible for call in - yes

TOWNSHIPS PLAN 2017-19
58 The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which sought approval of the Township Plan for 2017-19.

The Township Plan identified priorities determined by each Township’s 
Councillors as a focus for action over the next two years.  The plan gathered 
aspirations and ideas together as a focus for decision makers, Council 
services, partner agencies and the voluntary and community sector active in 
the Rochdale Borough.

The Township Plan 2015 and 2016 had now expired.  The Township Plan 
2017-19 included strategies and objectives identified to meet the priorities 
identified by each Township.  It would also guide, direct and detail the use of 
devolved budgets, including Township Revenue Funds, for the financial years 
2017/18 and 2018/19.

The Township Plan formed part of the Council’s policy framework.  The plan 
was a ‘live’ document that would evolve and change to meet new 
opportunities and initiatives, and would be updated to reflect how funds were 
allocated across the Township in line with the identified priorities.

DECIDED – (1) that the detail included in the Townships Plan 2017-19 as 
appended to the submitted report be noted;

(2) that it be noted that the plan has been developed in consultation with 
the Leader, the Portfolio Holder and the Township Chairs.  Consultation 
had also taken place with additional Elected Members in line with 
Township Chairs’ recommendations.

(3) that the plan be approved to enable a focus on local priorities in line 
with the Council’s three key priorities – Prosperity, People and Place.

Eligible for call in - yes

Page 7



Report to Heywood Township Committee

Date of Meeting 26th June 2017

Portfolio Cabinet Member for 
Corporate and Resources

Report Author Alison James

Public/Private Document Public

Heywood Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 
2017/18

Executive Summary

1. At the start of each municipal year, the Township Committee is required to 
confirm its delegated decision making arrangements for the year and to make 
appointments to Township Sub-Committees, (including the Chair and Vice 
Chair) and other bodies as detailed in Appendix 2 to the report.

Recommendation

2.

2.1

2.2

That the Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee be retained on the 
terms of reference as set out in Appendix 1 of the report;

That the Chair and Vice Chair of the Heywood Township Delegated Sub-
Committee and the membership be appointed;

That appointments be made to the other bodies as detailed in Appendix 2 to 
the report;

Reason for Recommendation

3. The Council has established and appoints Township Committees that may 
exercise both executive and non-executive powers as set out in the 
Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of the Constitution. 

The Sub-Committee exercises either delegated powers or acts on any matter 
detailed in the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is essential to take 
a decision. 

The proper appointment of Sub-Committees is required to permit the
undertaking of delegated functions in accordance with statutory and
procedural requirements, and appointments to Working Groups and Other
Bodies are required to enable the Township Committee to undertake and to

Page 8

Agenda Item 9



respond to the full range of issues relevant to the Township.

The Committee has delegated powers to make appointments to a number of 
other bodies as detailed in Appendix 2.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

The Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee currently exercises formal 
powers as detailed at Appendix 1, as a Sub-Committee for dealing with 
’urgent’ issues on behalf of the Township Committee and for making grant 
approvals and decisions on devolved budgets and Township Funds.

Alternatives Considered

The Committee could choose not to appoint to sub-committees and undertake 
all delegated functions themselves, but  this may have a detrimental impact on 
the ability to progress Township priorities or deal with urgent items of 
business. 

The Committee could choose to adopt alternative Sub-Committee 
arrangements.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no direct financial implications to this report.

Risk and Policy Implications

The Committee is being asked to confirm its delegation arrangements to 
ensure that decisions are made in accordance with relevant and statutory 
procedural requirements.  Not to appoint to the Sub-Committee and the 
working groups might limit member involvement in key initiatives for the 
Township.

6.

Consultation

7. Not required.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. There are no background papers 
to this report.

For Further Information Contact: Alison James, Tel: 01706 924711 
alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 9



Appendix 1

Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee – Terms of Reference 2017/2018

1. To deal with any urgent matters, on behalf of the Township Committee as 
detailed within Part 3, Paragraphs 8.1 and 8.2 of the Councils Constitution;

2. To monitor budgets delegated to the Township level (including Township
Funds), to ensure that all requirements and restrictions placed on any
devolved funding are met or are capable of being met before any
decisions are made;

3. To consider and determine all applications/ proposals to the Township
Funds, ensuring that all requirements and restrictions placed on any
devolved funding are met, or capable of being met, before any decisions
are made.

Page 10



Appendix 2

Heywood Township Appointments 2017/2018

a) Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee

In 2016/2017 All Township Committee Members were appointed to the 
Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee with Councillors Rush and 
Susan Emmott being appointed as Chair and Vice Chair respectively.

 b) East Lancashire Railway Trust

The Township Committee is requested to appoint two individuals to serve on 
the Trust. In 2016/2017, Councillor Rush and Mr B Davies were appointed to 
the Trust.

c) Heywood Magic Board

The Township Committee is requested to appoint Members to serve on the 
Board. In 2016/2017 Councillors Dutton, Susan Emmott, Robinson and 
Wardle were appointed to the Board.

d) Township Older Persons Champion

The Township Committee appoint one Member to serve in the above role.  In 
2016/2017 Councillor Robinson was appointed as the Township Older 
Persons Champion.

e) Township Highways Champion

The Township Committee appoint one Member to serve in the above role. In 
2016/2017 Councillor Beswick was appointed as the Township Highways 
Champion.

Page 11



Report to Heywood Township Committee

Date of Meeting 26th June 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Housing & Environment
Report Author Andrew Cowell
Public Document Public

Objections to Traffic Regulation Order - Bradshaw Street and Vale Street, 
Heywood

Executive Summary

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

A request was received from Heywood Township for the Council to investigate 
the introduction of parking restrictions along Bradshaw Street and Vale Street. 
It was reported that at certain times of the day vehicles park on both sides of 
Bradshaw Street and Vale Street. This obstructs several accesses, which are 
used by various coach companies.

New parking restrictions were promoted and during the consultation period the 
Authority received two letters of objection to the proposal.

The objectors report that the restrictions are too extensive and will have a 
negative impact on each of their respective businesses.

The report outlines the reason for the proposal, the objections received and a 
response to those objections.

Recommendation

2. The Committee should consider whether the proposed Traffic Regulation 
Order, Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Heywood Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.42) 
Order be implemented, as advertised, or abandoned in light of the 
representations received, which are outlined in Appendix B of this report. It is 
the recommendation of Officers that the objections be dismissed and the 
proposal introduced as advertised.

Reason for Recommendation

3. A request has been received from Heywood Township for the Council to 
investigate the introduction of parking restrictions along Bradshaw Street and Vale 
Street. It is reported that at certain times of the day vehicles park on both sides of 

Page 12

Agenda Item 10



Bradshaw Street and Vale Street. This obstructs several accesses, which are used 
by various coach companies.

Bradshaw Street and Vale Street are located to the south of Rochdale Road East on 
the east side of Heywood town centre. Bradshaw Street provides access to a 
supermarket, business park and several storage / business premises. It is not a 
through route for vehicular traffic and terminates at a point approximately 150 metres 
south west of Rochdale Road East. 

Vale Street is a short cul-de-sac providing access to two business premises. It 
connects with Bradshaw Street at its southern end.

It is reported that vehicles park at various locations on both Bradshaw Street and 
Vale Street at weekends and during the evenings. The vehicles are reportedly 
associated with regular events held by a local business located within the business 
park. There are several coach companies which are accessed directly from 
Bradshaw Street and Vale Street. The parked vehicles restrict access and egress for 
coaches. The coach companies often operate at weekends and evenings but are 
prevented from doing so by the obstructive parking.

There are existing parking restrictions in the vicinity of the superstore and near to the 
junction of Rochdale Road East, at the northern end of Bradshaw Street. However, 
there are currently no parking restrictions in the vicinity of the various access points, 
which reportedly become obstructed. 

The Police Injury Accident database shows no recorded accidents along either 
Bradshaw Street or Vale Street, in the last 3 years. 

It is proposed to introduce prohibition of waiting restrictions on:

• the north-west side of Bradshaw Street from a point 14 metres south-west of 
its junction with Rochdale Road East to its junction with Vale Street

• the north-west side of Bradshaw Street from a point 28 metres south-west of 
its junction with Vale Street for a distance of 10 metres in a south westerly 
direction to its termination point and including the head of the cul-de-sac

• the south-east side of Bradshaw Street from a point 23 metres north-east of a 
point opposite the north-easterly kerb-line of Vale Street for a distance of 72 
metres in a south-westerly direction to its termination point

• the south west side of Vale Street from its junction with Bradshaw Street for a 
distance of 26 metres in a north westerly direction

• the north east side of Vale Street for a distance of 19 metres in a north 
westerly direction

The proposed restrictions at the southern end of Bradshaw Street and Vale Street 
will assist in removing parked vehicles in the vicinity of the businesses, which will 
improve access and egress for coaches. The restrictions on the north west side of 
Bradshaw Street near to Rochdale Road East will prevent vehicles parking near to 
the signal stop line, enabling motorists to queue unhindered.

To address the issues reported, it is necessary to introduce the proposed 
Order as originally advertised (see Appendix A).

Page 13



Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

During the consultation period the Authority received 2 objection letters, one of 
which was signed by four owners of takeaways located on Rochdale Road 
East.

To comply with the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 the Authority must consider all objections submitted 
during the consultation period of 21 days before ‘Making’ a Traffic Regulation 
Order.

It should be noted that in considering the report, the proposed Order is 
deemed non-strategic in nature and should be dealt with in accordance with 
Section 8.2-3 of the Scheme of Delegation to Township Committee. 
Committee has delegated power to confirm or abandon the proposals and the 
Order.

In considering the objections the Committee should be mindful that the only 
right the general public has on the highway is a right of passage along it. The 
Council, acting in its capacity as Highway Authority, have a duty of care to 
ensure the safety of the travelling public and a duty under the Traffic 
Management Act 2004 to maintain the expeditious movement of traffic.

The Objectors’ comments and the Director of Neighbourhoods response
are attached at Appendix B and C of this report.

Alternatives Considered

The Committee could consider recommending to Cabinet that the proposal be 
abandoned.

Should Committee decide not to introduce the restrictions proposed then the 
issues with parked vehicles, which were reported to Heywood Township, will 
not be addressed.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. The cost of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order will be met by Heywood 
Township

Risk and Policy Implications

6. The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely 
and efficiently, for all traffic including pedestrians.

Page 14



Consultation

7.

7.1

7.2

7.3

Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 has taken place.

The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, The Freight 
Transport Association and the Road Haulage Association were consulted on 
14th March 2017.

Notices of intention were posted on site and published in the local newspaper 
on 16th March 2017.

The objection period ran until 13th April 2017.

Background Papers Place of Inspection
None

Page 15



APPENDIX  A – Notice of Intention and plans

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE
((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)

(VARIOUS STREETS) (HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)
(AMENDMENT) (NO. 42) ORDER

Bradshaw Street and Vale Street, Heywood

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its 
powers under Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to 
make an Order, the effect of which would be to:-

(i) Amend the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Heywood Township) Order 2008 by inserting the following:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Bradshaw Street, North Heywood Ward

n(iii) the north west side from its junction with Rochdale Road East to its junction with 
Vale Street

n(iv) the north west side from a point 28 metres south west of its junction with Vale 
Street for a distance of 10 metres in a south westerly direction to its termination 
point and including the head of the cul-de-sac

n(v) the south east side from a point 23 metres north east of a point opposite the 
north-easterly kerb-line of Vale Street for a distance of 72 metres in a south 
westerly direction to its termination point

Vale Street, North Heywood Ward

n(i) the south west side from its junction with Bradshaw Street for a distance of 26 
metres in north westerly direction

n(ii) the north east side from its junction with Bradshaw Street for a distance of 19 
metres in north westerly direction

(ii) Revoke that part of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic 
Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Heywood Township) Order 2008, as follows:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Bradshaw Street, North Heywood Ward

(ii) the west side from its junction with Rochdale Road East to a point 14 metres 
south of its junction with Rochdale Road East

A copy of the proposed Order and a map showing the lengths of roads concerned, 
together with the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be 
inspected at The Customer Services Centre, Heywood Library, L/Cpl Stephen Shaw M.C. 
Way, Heywood, OL10 1LL during normal office hours.

Page 16



Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be 
made in writing and forwarded to trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk or, alternatively, to 
Network Management, Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 
1XU to reach the Council on or before 13th April 2017, quoting H60/1232.

Dated this 16th day of March 2017

David Wilcock
Assistant Director – Legal, Governance & Workforce

Rochdale Borough Council
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
ROCHDALE
OL16 1XU

Page 17



Page 18



APPENDIX  B – Objections

Objection 1

Network Management
Floor 2,
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale
0L16 1XU
5th April 2017
Dear Sirs
Ref: TRO H60/1232
As the proprietor of Planet Play, which has now been established for 20 years and under my 
management for the past 16 years, during which time I have had no issue with the parking or 
movement of vehicles via Bradshaw Street. In this regard, I write to register my objection to 
the above noted parking restrictions as proposed in their current form.
In my time here, I have seen several businesses come and go including coach operators, 
with whom I have always had a cordlale relationship and have always assisted them to 
remove any obstructively parked vehicle, should they on occasion, been a customer of mine. 
Having met and discussed the situation at length with two of the local coach companies I can 
fully sympathize with the issue they face. However, it is quite apparent from these 
conversations that this problem has arisen over the last 18-24 months and as noted in the 
Statement of Reasons Is due to the trading activity of a business located in the Roeacre 
Business park. From my conversation with Christine a representative of GPD Travel (whose 
yard is adjacent to my car park), it is the patrons of this business who on a Saturday and 
evenings consistently park restricting access to Vale Street and the surrounding areas. 
These drivers then walk to the business. The reason they do this is because when the 
lesson/session they are attending is finished there are so many vehicles trying to exit their 
location that it becomes gndlocked and large queues form back into the access road of 
business park. By parking on Vale Street and the surrounding areas they are effectively 
avoiding the queues and can leave more easily. This traffic then queues onto Bradshaw 
Street often creating no access or egress to my car park forcustomers . Again, having 
discussed the proposed restriction with GPD Travel, they inform me that they only require a 
restriction to Vale Street, the junction opposite and around the corner on the north-west side 
towards my premises for a short distance to allow a coach access on to Bradshaw Street. It 
Is this proposed continuation of the restriction to the junction of Rochdale Road East to 
which I have an objection.The implementing of a restriction on this section wiN have a major 
impact on my business as it is used by my customers should our car park become full. There 
has, as the Statement of Reason notes from Police records, not been any accidents in the 
last three years and Indeed I cannot recollect any in all the time I have been here. This 
section of the proposed restriction is therefore not necessary and will do nothing to alleviate 
the problems of the coach operators. When the Aldi supermarket was built? parking 
restrictions were put in force on their side of the street and from the newly Installed traffic 
lights a short distance down the north-west side of Bradshaw Street from Rochdale Road 
East. This was obviously felt to be sufficient at the time by Highways engineers. Even though 
Aldi has become ever busier resulting in more traffic to their site there have been no 
problems arising from this and the existing parking and I would suggest that the current 
restrictions remain suitable and sufficient. Furthermore, the street is used on both the north-
west side and south-east sides by delivery vehicles not only to ourselves but other 
businesses. It is also used by lorry drivers required to take their statutory rest breaks in a 
safe and non-obstructive location. All this activity is and has been conducted daily for many 
years with no issues. Finally, I believe that the business In question which relocated to the 
Business Park early in 2008, was

Page 19



granted a change of use to its current activity on the proviso that it created a suitable parking 
facility which gave safe access, via barrier segregation and walkway to its customer base of 
children. It would now appear that the parking facilities are no longer sufficient and I fail to 
see how this proviso Is being adhered to when children are having to be walked through a 
busy industrial estate whose businesses operate lorries, fork lift trucks and buses. I would 
suggest that the root cause of the issue Is thoroughly investigated before any actions which 
will impinge on both myself and other local businesses are undertaken because of the 
problems created by this company.
I look forward to hearing from you in due course,
Yours sincerely

(Signed by the business manager)

Objection 2

Network Management
Floor 2
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale
0L16 1XU
4th April 2017
Your ref: H60/1232
Dear Sirs
We the undersigned wish to register our objection to the above noted proposed order.
As local businesses with limited or no parking facilities directly outside our premises
we know that many of our customers use Bradshaw Street near to Rochdale Road East
when visiting our premises.
Parking has been available here for many years and was allowed on both sides of the
street before the building ofthe Aldi store. We feel there are several points to
consider; firstly, the proposed restriction will have nothing but a detrimental effect to
our businesses as our customers will very likely be put off from using us and secondly
as our trade is evening based and most businesses on Bradshaw Street and Roeacre
Business Park are closed there is no issue with motorists queuing or being hindered at
the top of the street.
Finally, it is apparent from the Statement ofReason that the main problem Is
access/egress for coach operators who are all based at the southern end of Bradshaw
Street. The placement ofrestrictions on the north-west side ofBradshaw Street from
the junction of Rochdale Road East all the way down to its junction with Vale Street
is unwarranted and will not solve the problem. It will merely jeopardise our trade.
Again, as noted in the Statement ofReasons, this obstructive parking is associated
with events held by a business in the business park. We would like to suggest that the
source ofthis problematic parking is further investigated and the suitability of the
parking facilities ofthat business be brought into question as it is grossly unjust to
penalise our longstanding local businesses for an issue created by another and
completely beyond our control.
We trust you will give careful consideration and further investigation ofthe points
raised above.
Yours sincerely,

(signed by 4 takeaway business owners located on Rochdale Road East)

Page 20



APPENDIX C – Response to Objections

Although the main source of the problems were reported to the Council as being connected 
with a business located at Roeacre Business Park, addressing the parking issues of this 
single business through planning enforcement, would not necessarily provide a long term 
solution to the access problems for all the businesses in the area. From the representations 
made, it is clear that there is a demand for on-street parking spaces generated from other 
businesses as well. However, the comments have been passed to the Council’s Planning 
Enforcement Team who will investigate the complaint. If the business in question is in 
breach of any planning condition then this will be dealt with accordingly.

There are four industrial accesses in total, therefore affecting more than just two companies. 
The comments made do not represent all the businesses affected. It is considered that all 
the restrictions west of the Planet Play car park access are necessary to enable larger 
vehicles to enter and exit each premises unhindered. The size of vehicles operating in this 
area requires an extensive area of highway to be kept free of parked vehicles, especially the 
space opposite each access, to allow the vehicles to manoeuvre in and out.

The proposed restrictions do not restrict all the available on-street parking space along 
Bradshaw Street. The scheme was devised to introduce only the minimum length of 
restriction to solve the problems reported and to address any other issues determined 
through inspection. Two areas of highway were purposely left un-restricted to allow visitors 
or customers to park. The two areas total approximately 40 metres in length. This should be 
sufficient to meet the needs of the area most of the time.

In relation to the proposed restrictions on the approach to the signals, although no 
complaints were received about this area and it is unconnected with the reported access 
issues, these were included for completeness. As with any scheme devised, it is often 
practical to widen the scope of the scheme to include areas nearby to achieve economies of 
scale to address other highway related issues at the same time. It is clear that any parked 
vehicles in this area hinder the ability of motorists to stop and queue appropriately. Parked 
vehicles in this area could also affect the vehicle detection equipment located in the 
carriageway, leading to a misrepresentation of traffic flows in the signal controller. This can 
lead to the signals working inefficiently and adversely affecting traffic flows on the main road. 
Further to this, the Highway Code states that motorists should not park opposite a junction 
and this area sits opposite an access road.

The proposed restrictions will allow for the loading and un-loading of any type of vehicle and 
for the picking up and dropping off of passengers.

Page 21



Stage 1: Initial Screening

Directorate:  Neighbourhoods

Service:  Highways

Officer completing EIA:  Andrew Cowell

Other officers involved in completing EIA:  Andrew Cowell

Date of Assessment:  02-05-17

Name of policy to be assessed:  N/A

Is this a new or revised policy?  New ‘scheme’

New      ☐                    Revised      ☐

What is the purpose of the policy?  Scheme is to address highway obstruction issues

Are there any other objectives?  N/A

Who is likely to benefit from the policy (key stakeholders)?  Businesses and road users

Is the policy relevant to equality?

Yes      ☐                    No      ☒

(Answer yes if you think that the policy has equality considerations for example it has the potential to affect 
groups in different ways. If you have answered yes, proceed to question1. If you answered no, move to the sign 
off section as no further assessment is required)

What information do you have to inform this initial assessment?

(List or attach existing data that will help in identifying the potential impact of this policy for example previous 
consultation; research or practical guidance or any evidence or information that you already have about how 
this proposal might affect equality in any of the areas covered by the protected groups)

What is the potential impact that the policy could have with regard to the protected characteristics?

(Identify whether the policy has the potential to impact in a positive or negative way or not at all. For negative 
impacts use the impact table to calculate a score based on the likelihood that an impact will occur and what the 
actual impact might be then determine whether it is a High priority (H), Medium priority (M) or Low priority (L))

Positive 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact

Impact 
Score 

Impact 
priority

Neutral 
Impact

Page 22



(1-16) (H/M/L)
Age

☐ ☐ ☒

Disability
☐ ☐ ☒

Gender Reassignment 
☐ ☐ ☒

Marriage or civil partnership 
☐ ☐ ☒

Pregnancy or maternity
☐ ☐ ☒

Race 
☐ ☐ ☒

Religion or belief
☐ ☐ ☒

Sex
☐ ☐ ☒

Sexual orientation
☐ ☐ ☒

Serving / ex serving members of the armed forces
☐ ☐ ☒

Carers
☐ ☐ ☒

3. Do any of your negative impact scores identify as high priority on the impact table?

Yes      ☐                  No      ☒

If you identify a negative impact as being HIGH PRIORITY you must complete a full EIA (stage 2 onwards)

4. How will you minimise/remove any negative impact that identifies as medium or low?

(Identify the actions that you will take to minimise or remove these negative impacts by completing an action 
plan as at Appendix 1)

5. Is a full EIA required?

Yes      ☐                 No      ☒

Lead Officer Signature:
Andrew Cowell

Date:
02-05-17

Approver Signature Date:

Page 23



Agenda Item

Report to Heywood Township Committee

Date of Meeting 26 June 2017
Portfolio Neighbourhoods & 

Community
Report Author Sharron Worrall
Public/Private Document Public Document

Heywood Township Funds Review

1. Executive Summary

1.1 This report reviews the revenue and capital expenditure during 2016/17 and 
provides options for the allocation of funds in 2017/18.

1.2 Members are asked to approve Heywood Township Funds terms and 
conditions, and agree delegation arrangements concerning funding decisions.

2. Recommendation

2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Heywood 
Township revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2016/17 (Appendix 1 
and 2).

2.2 Members note the findings of the review of Township Funds 2016/17 
(Appendix 3) and evaluations received to date for some of the projects funded 
(Appendix 4).

2.3 Members approve the allocation of Heywood Township Funds to funding 
streams in 2017/18 as detailed in Appendix 5.

2.4 Members approve the terms and conditions for Heywood Township revenue 
and capital funds for 2017/18 (Appendix 6).

2.5 Members agree to the delegation arrangements for Heywood Township Funds 
2017/18 as detailed at 4.6 of this report.

3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Management of the Heywood Township Fund is delegated to the Heywood 
Township Delegated Sub Committee.

3.2 Heywood Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the 
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

Page 24

Agenda Item 11



3.3 To enable committee to monitor and review the use of the Heywood Township 
Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.

4. Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Members note expenditure, commitments and balances for Heywood 
Township revenue and capital funds 2016/17 (Appendix 1 and 2).  The final 
outturn for financial year 2016/17 as agreed with Accountancy will be reported 
to the next scheduled funding committee.

4.2 A review of Heywood Township revenue and capital funds has been 
undertaken (Appendix 3).  Findings have influenced funding streams 
suggestions, the terms and conditions of the funds and the administration 
procedures for grant applications for 2017/18.

4.3 Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Township relating to 
identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of 
grants; whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their 
objectives and evidence their successes, and ensure that the completed 
projects funded complied with the terms and conditions of the Heywood 
Township Fund.  Grants awarded and projects funded have made a difference 
to the local community with improvements to local facilities, increased social 
interaction and delivery of solutions to address local needs.  All successful 
applicants are informed that it is a condition of the grant that they complete a 
project evaluation form.  Members are asked to note the summaries of 
evaluation information received on projects which have been funded as 
detailed in Appendix 4.

4.4 Township Officers have analysed the findings from the review of Township 
Funds 2016/17 and recommend that Members approve the allocation of 
Township Funds to funding streams in 2017/18 as detailed in Appendix 5.

4.5 Terms and conditions for Heywood Township revenue and capital funds have 
been updated.  Members are asked to approve the terms and conditions for 
2017/18 (Appendix 6).

4.6 Members are asked to agree the delegation arrangements for Heywood 
Township Funds 2017/18 as follows:

a) Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair and 
Vice Chair of Heywood Township Committee, may make decisions on the 
allocation of funds to all projects for £5,000 and under.

b) Heywood Township Officers will refer projects over £5,000 to the next 
Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee for decision.

c) Township Officers will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to 
Ward Councillors to seek their support.  Decisions on Ward Funds are 
delegated to the Townships & Communities Manager in consultation with 
the Ward Councillors with the decision based on majority agreement.  Any 
disputes concerning allocation of Ward Funds will be referred to the next 
Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee for decision.

d) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Heywood 

Page 25



Township Delegated Sub Committee to ensure all Members are aware of 
projects that have been approved.

4.7 Alternatives Considered

In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the 
allocation of funds to funding streams and adopt the terms and conditions.

5. Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Heywood Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail 
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2016/17 in 
Appendix 1 and 2.  Recommendations for allocation of Heywood Township 
Funds to funding streams for financial year 2017/18 in Appendix 5.

5.2 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use 
of the Heywood Township Funds to ensure best use of available resources.

5.3 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring 
reports will be presented to future committees.

6. Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 No specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report.

6.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework.  The plan 
for 2017-19 will be regularly updated to reflect how funds are allocated across 
the Townships in line with the identified priorities.

6.3 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to 
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those 
priorities.

7. Consultation

7.1 None

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Sharron Worrall
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924802

Page 26



APPENDIX 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE 2016/17           £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 
Budget b/f 2015/16 17,490         70.22% 90.30%

Base Budget 2016/17 58,000         

Income/Adjustments 2016/17 -                   

Budget Available 2016/17 75,490         

Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 53,012         

Commitments 15,157         

Total Actual + Commitments 68,168         

Budget Remaining 2016/17 7,322           

Forecast Outturn 75,490         

Potential under/(over)spend 2016/17 -                   

Fund

 Balance b/f 

2015/16

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2016/17

£ 

 Income/

Adjustments

2016/17 

 Revised 

Budget 

2016/17 

 Actuals to 

Period

         £ 

 Committed 

to Period

     £ 

 Virements 

within 

Township 

Funds 

£ 

 Virements to 

Services 

£ 

 Total to 

Period      

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2016/17       

£ 

Projects Fund 7,987           42,000         -                      49,987         26,447          10,936           -                     12,604           49,987    -                  

Events Fund 324              8,000           -                      8,324           8,050            229                -                     -                     8,279      45               

North Ward Fund 3,749           3,000           -                      6,749           2,035            1,992             -                     -                     4,027      2,722          

West Ward Fund -                   3,000           -                      3,000           -                   -                     -                     3,000             3,000      -                  

Hopwood Hall Ward 5,430           2,000           -                      7,430           875               2,000             -                     -                     2,875      4,555          

Total 17,490         58,000         -                      75,490         37,408          15,157           -                     15,604           68,168    7,322          

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2016/17

P
age 27



APPENDIX 2

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL 2016/17           £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 
Budget b/f (2015/16) 11,800         74.33% 100.00%

Base Budget 2016/17 53,600         

Income/Adjustments 2016/17

Budget Available 2016/17 65,400         

Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 48,610         

Commitments 16,790         

Total Actual + Commitments 65,400         

Budget Remaining 2016/17 -                  

Forecast Outturn 65,400         

Potential under/(over)spend 2016/17 -                  

Project

 Balance b/f 

2015/16

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2016/17

£ 

 Income/

Adjustments

2016/17

£ 

 Revised 

Budget 

2016/17

£ 

 Actuals/

Virement to 

Period

         £ 

 Committed 

to Period     

£ 

 Total to 

Period

      £ 

 Budget 

Remaining

2016/17

£ 
HTC/06/14 Pedestrian guard rail outside White 

Lion Public House
1,790           -                  -                       1,790           -                   1,790             1,790            -                 

HTC/06/15 Hamer Street and High Street Parking 

Waiting Restrictions
4,000           -                       4,000           4,000            -                    4,000            -                 

HTC/09/15 Heywood Cemetery Entrance 

Improvements
26,496         -                       26,496         26,496          -                    26,496          -                 

HTC/01/16 Middleton Road Junction Magdala 

Street Extension to Waiting Restrictions
3,500           -                       3,500           3,500            -                    3,500            -                 

HTC/02/16 Marlor Court Parking Zone 3,500           -                       3,500           3,500            -                    3,500            -                 

HTC/04/16 Moss Hall Road Parking Restrictions 4,000           -                       4,000           4,000            -                    4,000            -                 

HTC/05/16 Vale Street/Bradshaw Street Junction 

Parking Restrictions
4,000           -                       4,000           4,000            -                    4,000            

HTC/06/16 Magdala Street & Hopwood Primary 

School Signage
1,000           -                       1,000           1,000            -                    1,000            -                 

HTC/07/16 Starkey Street 15,000         -                       15,000         -                   15,000           15,000          -                 

HTC/09/16 Pilsworth Road/Regent Street Area 

Waiting Restrictions
2,114           -                       2,114           2,114            -                    2,114            -                 

-                  -                       -                  -                   -                    -                   -                 

-                  -                  -                       -                  -                   -                    -                   -                 

Unallocated Funds 2016/17 10,010         (10,010)        -                       -                  -                   -                    -                   -                 

-                  -                  -                       -                  -                   -                    -                   -                 

-                  -                  -                       -                  -                   -                    -                   -                 

Total 11,800         53,600         -                       65,400         48,610          16,790           65,400          -                 

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2016/17

P
age 28



1 

 

 

APPENDIX 3 

 

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP YEAR END REVENUE & CAPITAL FUNDS REVIEW 2016/17 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Projects 
Fund 

£42,000 
Base Budget 

2016/17 
 

b/f 2015/16 
£7,987 

The Projects Fund provides a budget to resource larger projects to address issues/demands to benefit the local 
community and environment across Heywood Township. 
 
This fund has been used to deliver and support 26 projects approved in 2016/17.  The variety of projects funded 
included the removal of grass verges on Heap Street to address the problem of vehicle overrun/parking on the 
grassed area; repairs to the Heywood Market car park; replacement of lights to illuminate the St Luke’s Church clock; 
replacement doors at St James community hall to enhance the building's security; weekly drop In sessions for 
vulnerable adults at risk of social isolation and with associated mental health issues; summer holiday activities at 
Heywood Civic for local children and young people to entertain, educate and inspire; Heywood Charities Fete parade 
and event held in Queen's Park celebrating tradition and community heritage with a variety of activities and 
entertainment; Christmas Festival that provided social and economic benefits for the town with the event attracting 
shoppers and visitors; programme of healthy activity, competition and support for young people in Heywood with 
rugby league coaching and a series of inter-school matches; a parasol at Bridgewood Lodge for residents to enjoy 
some fresh air with shelter from the sun and provide an outdoor location to meet visitors. 
 
This fund has a committed amount of £10,936 to be carried forward to 2017/18. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Projects Fund retains a base budget of £42,000 in 2017/18 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

Events Fund £8,000 
Base Budget 

2016/17 
 

b/f 2015/16 
£324 

 

The Events Fund has been used to resource the Heywood 1940’s Day 2017 to be organised by Heywood Business 
Group.  The event will aim to raise the profile of Heywood and promote the area to surrounding towns as a place to 
shop and visit. 
 
This fund has an unallocated amount of £45 to be carried forward to 2017/18. 

Township Officers recommend the Events Fund retains a base budget of £8,000 in 2017/18. 

P
age 29



2 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

North Ward 
Fund 

£3,000 
Base Budget 

2016/17 
 

b/f 2015/16 
£3,749 

Each Heywood Township Ward received £3,000 (except Hopwood Hall Ward pro rata £2,000) to allocate to smaller 
projects that would enable activities to take place to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the local 
community and environment.  This fund has been useful in providing a budget for dealing with issues supported by 
Ward Councillors that necessitated a quick response. 
 
These funds were used to support a variety of projects during 2016/17: 
 
North Ward Fund financed the supply and installation of new flooring to complete the refurbishment of the main hall at 
Sandon House for community use; contributed towards repairs to Heywood Market car park; equipment for a girls 
cricket club; entry fee for Heywood in Bloom to enter the North West in Bloom competition.  Committed funds of 
£1,992 and unallocated funds of £2,722 at year end to be carried forward into 2017/18. 
 
West Ward Fund financed the removal and replacement with tarmac of the grass verge on Heap Street to address the 
problem of vehicle overrun/parking on the grassed area. 
 
Hopwood Hall Ward Fund have committed funds towards environmental improvements within the ward and funded 
the installation of a grit bin on Lenten Grove, Heywood.  Committed funds of £2,000 and unallocated funds of £4,555 
at year end to be carried forward into 2017/18. 

West Ward 
Fund 

£3,000 
Base Budget 

2016/17 
 

 

Hopwood 
Hall Ward 
Fund 

£2,000 
Base Budget 

2016/17 
 

b/f 2015/16 
£5,430 

Township Officers recommend the Ward Funds retain a base budget of £8,000 pro-rata in 2017/18. 

 

CAPITAL FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Capital Fund £53,600 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2015/16 

£11,800 

The Capital Fund has been used to deliver projects that benefit the Township’s community and environment, and 
realise the Township priorities in 2016/17.  Projects were submitted from Councillors, Council Officers and the 
community. 
 
The Capital Fund has been used to finance 9 projects in 2016/17.  The variety of projects funded included introduction 
of waiting restrictions Hamer Street and High Street; improvements to the entrance of Heywood Cemetery; extension 
of waiting restrictions on  Middleton Road Junction Magdala Street; introduction of residents' parking permit zone on 
Millbank Street, Heywood to stop indiscriminate parking from non-residents; additional signage on Magdala Street to 
warn traffic of school crossing patrol; Starkey Street junction improvements to address traffic issues in the area. 
 
This fund has a committed amount of £16,790 to be carried forward to 2017/18. 
 

Township Officers recommend that the Capital Fund retains a base budget of £53,600 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

P
age 30



APPENDIX 4 

“…great success with record crowds in 
attendance throughout the entire day.  The 
heavily decorated town was thriving, vibrant 
and busy.  Charities raised funds and local 
businesses benefited” 
Melanie Caffrey 
Secretary 

Heywood Business Group 

Recipient: Heywood Business Group 

Project: Heywood 1940’s Day 2016 

Fund: Town Centre Fund & Events Fund 

Awarded: £8,000 

Heywood 1940’s Day on Saturday 18 June 2016 was organised by Heywood Business Group 
in partnership with Heywood Township.  Entertainment and fun activities from the 1940’s era 
provide a historical, educational and nostalgic interest to both young and old.  This community 
event promotes the town nationally as a destination for leisure, recreation and shopping. 

This event now in its eighth year is as popular as ever for all the family with numerous free 
activities and it has become the highlight of Heywood’s social calendar.  Locals and visitors to 
the town enjoyed the many military and classic vehicles on show, the NAAFI at St Luke’s 
Church where the crowds were serenaded with wartime tunes and period dance 
performances, photo opportunities with Spitfire, German Messerschmitt 109 and Hurricane full 
size replica planes, re-enactors in period uniforms, traditional street musicians, vintage 
carousel, street theatre and stalls offering 1940’s style crafts, cakes and sweets.  Local 
businesses joined in the fun with 1940’s themed window displays, staff dressing in vintage 
clothing, bunting, memorabilia exhibits and providing refreshments.  Local people and visitors 
were encouraged to dress in forties outfits to maintain the momentum of the themed event. 

Page 31



The highlights of the day included a flyover by a Spitfire and the unique educational attraction 
of The Great War Experience that provided a replica of a Somme trench contained within a 
40ft vehicle with visitors gaining an understanding of the horrendous conditions endured by 
the soldiers who fought in the battle. 

Record crowds were in attendance throughout the day with the date of the event chosen to 
coincide with Armed Forces Week to show the town’s support for the men and women who 
make up the Armed Forces community from currently serving troops to Service families, 
veterans and cadets.  A poignant and moving service of remembrance of the Battle of the 
Somme in Heywood Memorial Gardens with a dedication of commemorative benches was 
arranged to mark this year’s 100th anniversary.  Serving soldiers, veterans and cadets 
participated in an Armed Forces Parade through the town centre with massive applause from 
the hundreds of local people lining the streets before the flag to recognise Armed Forces Day 
was raised in Heywood Memorial Gardens. 

Page 32



Page 33



“…the group have made progress in their own 
way, all have grown in confidence, meeting up 
with people on a regular basis has improved 
their self-esteem and communication skills” 
Kathy Thomas 
Chief Executive 

Rochdale Connections Trust 

Recipient: Rochdale Connections Trust (RCT) 

Project: Heywood Drop-in 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £4,949 

Rochdale Connections Trust (RCT) is a charity that supports vulnerable young people and 
adults who are finding life difficult.  A range of structured programmes offer supportive 
interventions to address an array of issues across the borough.  Home visits, one to one 
sessions, group work delivery and training to help individuals to overcome barriers is 
available to local young people and adults.  In addition, RCT offer an in-house counselling 
service for anyone in emotional need and a commercial training company is affiliated to the 
charity that provides all associated training courses for their clients. 

Mental health issues can be extremely debilitating and the provision of a drop-in service 
has proven results in keeping group members with such issues engaged and active.  
Through the development of strong peer relationships, beneficiaries take on the role of 
providing day to day support for each other and are encouraged to take on additional 
voluntary work that benefits the local community.  The drop-in sessions funded were held in 
the Magic Room, Heywood Market in the format of an informal coffee morning to achieve a 
relaxed, comfortable and supportive environment for isolated and vulnerable people.  The 
location of the sessions was key to the success of the project at it was a central location 
and open on a market day in order to encourage isolated people to access the service.  
The sessions aimed to increase confidence, raise self-esteem and upskill participants.  
RCT delivered sessions that addressed managing mental health, one to one support with 
housing issues, mental ill health issues, budgeting and relationship problems.  Participants 
are better able to manage their own mental health, recognising the warning signs to feeling 
depressed and putting into place coping strategies.  The group enjoyed additional training 
days and days out walking in the park as well as meeting up on social occasions outside of 
the drop in sessions to support and spend time with each other. For the individuals 
accessing the counselling service, RCT report they all showed an improvement in their 
mental wellbeing. 

“Some of the participants have received counselling sessions and for one person who we 
were very concerned about we have contacted their GP and monitored their failing mental 
health very closely.  Children/young people of a couple of the participants have accessed our 
youth support programme and we will continue to work with these young people after the 
coffee morning ends” 
Kathy Thomas 

Chief Executive, Rochdale Connections Trust 

Page 34



“On the back of this project, we have 
launched an increased programme of events 
for the Autumn half term and have developed 
relationships with a local charity to put on a 
Christmas cinema for under privileged 
children, something we hope to build on” 
Graham Duckworth 
Events & Entertainments Manager 

Link4Life 

Recipient: Link4Life 

Project: Children's Summer Holiday Activities at Heywood Civic Centre 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £2,600 

Link4Life’s Children’s Summer Holiday Activities at Heywood Civic Centre provided 
opportunities for local children to access quality events and provide positive participation at 
an affordable price in a safe secure environment.  New and innovative events were 
organised to entertain, educate and inspire to broaden their horizons of children, create a 
foundation to produce a comprehensive range of school holiday activities and a legacy for 
future events for all school holidays. 

The events staged throughout the Summer holidays were The Wild Show that encouraged 
children to interact and learn about a range of exotic animals and insects, Marty 
MacDonald’s Toy Machine Show that featured puppet characters from CBeebies 
performing a fun, interactive, song-filled adventure set on a colourful farmyard plus a meet 
and greet after the performance, and six cinema screenings of child orientated movies 
where each ticket included a free hot dog and chips.  A total of 406 people attended the 
events and The Wild Show sold out all three performances. 

The programme of events developed by Link4Life, without focusing on financial returns, 
raised awareness and the profile of Heywood Civic Centre as a family venue.  Link4Life 
intend to build on this programme each school holiday with events, activities and 
entertainment that are affordable, relevant and meaningful. 

Page 35



“All our visitors are amazed at the standard 
we have achieved.  Junior membership is 
going strong and they are building their own 
layouts under the supervision of our older 
members” 
Roger Bottomley 
Secretary 

Heywood Model Railway Group 

Recipient: Heywood Model Railway Group 

Project: Refurbishment and building of model railway layouts 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £2,000 

Heywood Model Railway Group was formed in 1969 when three enthusiasts wanted to share 
their knowledge about model railways.  The group builds and operates railway models in the 
scale of 7mm or under and members meet twice a week to build layouts for personal use and 
exhibitions.  Open/running days are held for people who have locomotives or stock that they 
wish to run on one of the group’s many large layouts as they can accommodate stock in 
either N, 00 or 0 gauges.  Also the group encourages people without stock to visit the group’s 
premises on River Street, Heywood to get inspiration for their own models and run some of 
the group’s stock on the various layouts.  The knowledge and expertise of long time 
modellers can be viewed when the group displays their layouts at annual exhibitions. 

The group have refurbished and upgraded existing model railway layouts in the club room to 
engage members both young and old in the hobby and attract new members.  Building a 
model railway is a great social family-oriented hobby and promotes basic carpentry and 
electrical skills as well as artistic ability when building scenery.  Exhibitions of the refurbished 
and new model railway layouts will be held at location community events and school parties 
will be invited to participate in scenic classes and craft activities associated with railway 
modelling. 

Before After 

0 Gauge Layout 

Page 36

http://www.hmrg.co.uk/cm4/heybury12full.jpg


Before After 

Before After 

Before After 

Townley Summit Layout 

Midhey Layout 

Sumner Brook Layout 

Page 37



“The parade again this year was 
exceptional.  The stage 
entertainment and the number of 
stalls in the park proves that this 
event is once again growing” 
Steve Brown 
Chairman 

Heywood Charities Fete 

Recipient: Heywood Charities Fete Committee 

Project: Heywood Charities Fete 2016 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £2,260 

Heywood Charities Fete aims to develop and improve community involvement by 
encouraging as many local community and voluntary groups as possible to participate in the 
annual event.  Opportunities are created for community organisations to fund raise for the 
benefit of the Heywood community at the Fete with stalls or providing activities. 

The Fete on Sunday 4 September 2016 provided a parade and a day of entertainment for all 
the family.  The range of entertainment in Queen’s Park throughout the day celebrated 
tradition and community heritage, and promoted community spirit. 

Heywood Charities Fete Committee were awarded a grant to contribute to circus and samba 
workshops, music from Accrington Pipe Band, Littleborough Band and Manchester School of 
Samba, a dog agility show and hawks display.  Participants raised much needed funds for 
their projects, provided information on the support they offer and showed off their skills.  The 
audience for the event in Queen’s Park and the parade were entertained by 31 floats/groups 
walking who participated in the parade themed on musicals and 49 park attractions including 
classic cars, circus acts, dance performances, a dog show and bands. 

Heywood’s annual celebration for local worthy causes emulated the success of past events 
with the streets lined with people to enjoy the parade and joining in the fun provided by the 
many attractions in Queen’s Park. 

Page 38



Page 39



 

“The whole day was fantastic, the addition of 
a massive firework display as a new 
attraction provided a grand finale which 
wowed the crowds” 
Melanie Caffrey 
Secretary 

Heywood Business Group 

Recipient: Heywood Business Group 

Project: Heywood Christmas Festival 2016 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £4,000 

Heywood Business Group is a well-established, independent, local business group run 
voluntarily by local business people.  The group promotes Heywood and the town centre 
businesses in a positive light, and organises activities in the town to create a feel good 
environment in Heywood with the aim of generating prosperity for the town and wider 
community. 

Heywood Christmas Festival was organised by Heywood Business Group on behalf of 
Heywood Township to promote the town as a destination for leisure, recreation and 
shopping.  The festival on Saturday 19 November 2016 provided many family attractions, 
entertainment and themed food and drink that brought the people of Heywood and the wider 
community together.  Activities, stalls and entertainment included a local talent contest 
outside St Luke’s Church, arts and crafts sessions 
 for children, magic show, performances from  
Middleton Youth Brass Band and Littleborough  
Brass Band, market stalls to support a local  
charity or purchase a festive treat, vintage  
carousel, costumed characters (Frozen sisters, 
Peppa Pig, Mickey and Minnie Mouse, Paw  
Patrols Marshall and Chase, Captain America  
and Batman) and Elfie the Elf was on a special  
mission to add the well-behaved children to  
Santa’s nice list and take present requests.   
Heywood’s Christmas lights were switched  
on by the Mayor and Mayoress as St Luke’s  
Church chimed and The Olde Queen Anne  
hosted a fantastic firework display in the  
grand finale. 

The festival is an inclusive and cohesive  
event that helps build links between the  
different communities in Heywood.  It  
provides social and economic benefits for  
the town with the event attracting shoppers  
and visitors to enjoy the festive celebration. 

Page 40



“The event was a huge success, very well attended by the public including people 
from other areas who would not normally shop in Heywood.  Local businesses 
enjoyed a particularly busy trading day” 
Melanie Caffrey 
Secretary 

Heywood Business Group 

Page 41



“Heywood Congress continues to pull 
players from all over the country as well as 
locally and regionally.  It really does raise 
awareness of our town” 
Bill O’Rourke 
Organiser 

Heywood Chess Congress 

Recipient: Heywood Chess Congress 

Project: Heywood Chess Congress 2016 

Fund: Ward Fund 

Awarded: £500 

Heywood Chess Club is one of the biggest chess clubs in the North West of England with 
members varying in ability from novice to grandmaster.  Teams are entered in Bury & 
Rochdale, Central Lancashire and Manchester leagues.  The club has acted as a conduit for 
many county matches and hosted championship finals and exhibitions by grandmasters. 

Heywood Chess Congress is a weekend event that brings local, regional, national and 
international players to the town.  The congress took place on Saturday 18 and Sunday 19 
June 2016 in Heywood Civic Centre and attracted visitors to the town from as far afield as 
Cornwall, London and Northumbria to learn and play the game of chess.  This year the 
Heywood Chess Congress had a 5% increase in attendance as a result of a biennial visit of 
twin town chess players from Peine, Germany and a visit from grandmaster Keith Arkell.  
Heywood Chess Club gained five new members after the event who will realise the benefits 
that playing chess brings of improved memory, cognitive abilities and strategic thinking.  The 
event encouraged a community spirit and benefited the local economy as it attracted visitors 
and shoppers to Heywood. 

Page 42



Page 43



“We believe we have been very 
successful in promoting the civic twinning 
and the association friendship with 
Tourcoing.  …enjoying and participating 
in a wide range of activities served to 
foster social connections” 
Kathryn Rennie 
General Secretary 

Friends of Tourcoing Association 

Recipient: Friends of Tourcoing Association 
Project: Friends of Tourcoing Association celebration for 50 years of Civic Twinned 

Township Friendship 
Fund: Events Fund 
Awarded: £500 

Friends of Tourcoing Association aims to interest and inform the people of the Rochdale 
Borough about France and in particular the twinned town of Tourcoing.  The association 
promotes friendship, mutual respect and diversity.  The civic twinning relationship with 
Tourcoing has achieved 60 years and the friendship group a fantastic 50 years, bringing 
English and French together in community spirit and warm relationship.  Local people are 
offered the opportunity to engage in friendly social activities throughout the year and in 
particular, to access a bi annual trip to France to meet Les Amis de Rochdale, enjoying a 
civic reception from the Mayor of Tourcoing and sightseeing.  Many members have 
established solid friendships with their hosts over the years and return the hospitality to the 
French when they come to England to visit.  Friends of Tourcoing members actively take part 
in community events within the borough and contribute to the Mayor’s Charity as they have 
enjoyed civic patronage since their formation. 

A programme of activities in 2016 to celebrate 50 years of Tourcoing association friendship 
and 60 years of civic twinning promoted a positive image of the borough and its people.  
Friends of Tourcoing worked in partnership with community organisations and a school and 
patronised local businesses who all received credit for contributing to a successful visit. 

Page 44



Caldershaw Primary School (linked with Condorcet Primary School in Tourcoing) children 
hosted an afternoon of games and gave a choir performance, Heywood’s GPD Travel 
provided transport, students from Hopwood Hall College made and presented a celebratory 
cake, The Angel Project Community Café in the heart of Langley, Middleton welcomed the 
French guests and local potter Ken Isherwood produced commemorative bowls for the 
visitors.  The venues of the Coop Museum, Touchstones, Greater Manchester Fire Service 
Museum and St John The Baptist Church welcomed the visitors with special tours and 
entertainment was provided throughout the visit with performances from St Ann’s Morris 
Troupe, Wardle Senior Band and Skylight Circus Arts.  The Civic Dinner at Rochdale Town 
Hall hosted by the Mayor and Mayoress attended by the French guests of Deputy Mayor 
Didier Droart, President of Les Amis de Rochdale Mme Marie-Christine Lejenun, French 
Councillors Dorian and Sebastian Becue and Peter Maenout with other members of Les 
Amis de Rochdale was a special occasion with catering provided by Crofters and a 
performance by Lancashire Fusiliers Corp of Drums.  The local economy benefited from the 
visit with the French guests dining at local restaurants, hiring local transport and buying 
numerous souvenirs. 

Friends of Tourcoing Association considered the highlight of the programme was the 
spectacular celebration with 140 people at the 50th Celebration Dinner at Rochdale Town 
Hall.  The occasion was an opportunity to recognise special members of both Friends of 
Tourcoing and Les Amis de Rochdale.  Gifts were presented to Mrs Dorothy Forshaw in 
recognition of 50 years membership of Friends of Tourcoing and Christopher Dobby received 
a gift for having been a member of Les Amis since 1966 and at the age of 92 continues to 
take part in the exchanges.  Jean-Pierre Collado was presented with a gift in recognition of 
his contribution to Twinning and this was his 115th visit to the borough.  He began in 1971 as 
organiser of exchanges for schools and community groups and is remembered by many 
children now adults.  The programme of activities in 2016 to celebrate 50 years of Tourcoing 
friendship consolidated the association’s aims and aspirations. 

Page 45



Page 46



“We believe the website will be of real 

benefit for local people, visitors and 

businesses in the town and will serve to 

strengthen the community as a whole” 

Sandra Trickett 

The Aspen Tree 

Recipient: Sandra Trickett 

Project: Official Heywood Town Website 

Fund: Town Centre Fund 

Awarded: £3,890 

Heywood Town website (www.heywoodtown.co.uk) went live on 1 May 2016 to provide 
information useful to visitors and residents.  The website is a platform to support the high 
number of voluntary groups and charities, to co-ordinate and publicise events, showcase 
amenities on offer within the town and promote local businesses. 

The venture is funded for the initial three years by Heywood Township.  Designed and 
managed by Heywood based business The Aspen Tree, the ongoing maintenance and 
future development of the website includes enrolling local advertisers.  A percentage of the 
advertising revenue will be made available to local charities.  Recent developments made 
to the website include increased content consisting of a community events calendar and 
information about local services, places of interest and community news articles.  The 
business and group listings have now been merged into the content driven side of the 
website. 

Heywood town is promoted on the website as a place of interest to visit, a thriving shopping 
destination and an attractive location to set up a business. 

Page 47

http://theaspentree.co.uk/


APPENDIX 5

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDING STREAMS 2017/18

REVENUE FUNDS 2017/18 = £88,519

REVENUE FUNDS

Fund b/f 2016/17 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2017/18
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2017/18

Notes

Projects Fund £10,936 £42,000 £8,040 £60,976 £10,936 £50,040 Fund to resource larger revenue projects that meet the Township 

priorities.  Base budget of £42,000 with retained budget of 

£10,936 (see committed column) for projects approved pre 

2017/18 and £8,040 (see income/adjustments column) received 

from Rochdale's Public Health Service to be allocated to health 

and wellbeing related projects to benefit the local community.

Events Fund £274 £8,000 £0 £8,274 £229 £8,045 Fund for Heywood Township to allocate to events during 2017/18 

for the benefit of the local community.  Base budget of £8,000 

with retained budget of £229 (see committed column) for projects 

approved pre 2017/18.

North Ward Fund £4,714 £3,000 £0 £7,714 £1,992 £5,722 Fund for North Heywood Ward to allocate to small revenue 

projects to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the 

local community/environment.  Base budget of £3,000 with 

retained budget of £1,992 (see committed column) for projects 

approved pre 2017/18.

West Ward Fund £0 £3,000 £0 £3,000 £0 £3,000 Fund for West Heywood Ward to allocate to small revenue 

projects to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the 

local community/environment.  Base budget of £3,000.

Hopwood Hall Ward Fund £6,555 £2,000 £0 £8,555 £2,000 £6,555 Fund for Hopwood Hall Heywood Ward to allocate to small 

revenue projects to respond to local issues/demands for the 

benefit of the local community/environment.  Base budget of 

£2,000 with retained budget of £2,000 (see committed column) 

for projects approved pre 2017/18.

TOTAL £22,479 £58,000 £8,040 £88,519

Page 1 of 2

P
age 48



CAPITAL FUNDS 2017/18 = £70,390

CAPITAL FUNDS

Fund b/f 2016/17 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2017/18
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2017/18

Notes

Capital Fund £16,790 £53,600 £0 £70,390 £16,790 £53,600 Fund to resource capital projects that meet the Township 

priorities.  Base budget of £53,600 with retained budget of 

£16,790 (see committed column) for projects approved pre 

2017/18.

TOTAL £16,790 £53,600 £0 £70,390

Page 2 of 2

P
age 49



 

Form HT03 

1 

HHEEYYWWOOOODD  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  22001177--1188 
 

1. Purpose of the fund 

 

Heywood Township’s vision is for Heywood to offer an attractive location, which is part of a successful 
borough and city region, where people feel proud of the town and enjoy living there.  We want Heywood to 
have a strong sense of identity and community offering a wide range of housing in attractive neighbourhoods 
at excellent value, modern employment opportunities and a thriving town centre with a good range of shops 
and leisure facilities. 
 

Heywood Township funds can be used to offer support to organisations and projects that are of direct benefit 
to the community and environment of Heywood.  Any local constituted community organisation can request 
funding support from Heywood Township for project support.  Special consideration will be given to groups 
without their own funds/with limited alternative means and those in areas not benefiting from other funding 
opportunities. 
 

All projects must show how they will address the Heywood Township priorities of: 
 

 People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be 

healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives.  We will enable 

communities to thrive and develop. 

 Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, work 

and invest. 

 Prosperity – We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create 

the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs. 
 

2. What can be funded 

 

a) Projects aiming to meet Township priorities. 

b) Projects for which there is no other identifiable budget and are within the powers of the Council. 

c) Projects that supplement or enhance current Council service provision. 

d) Improvements to landscapes or public areas, eg providing additional seating, paving, railings, etc. 

e) Restoration of buildings or landscaping as part of a heritage scheme. 

f) Projects that can clearly demonstrate benefit to the local community such as providing bollards, fencing, 

lights, CCTV, etc. 

g) Projects that can be delivered with no additional revenue costs. 

h) Equipment hire or purchase such as IT equipment, sports equipment, arts and crafts materials, etc. 

i) Publicity materials that recognise the contribution made by the Township. 

j) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities. 

k) Hiring of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs). 

l) Talented young athletes competing at national/international level supported by a recognised sporting 

body. 
 

3. What cannot be funded 

 

a) Projects that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces existing 

services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide. 

b) Projects benefiting individuals. 

c) Improvements to private land or buildings resulting in equity gain, unless there is a demonstrable wider 

community benefit. 

d) Promoting religious or political causes. 

e) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory 

functions. 

f) Support for the general work of charities including fundraising events. Page 50

Worrall Sharron
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 6



 

Form HT03 

2 

g) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff. 

h) General running costs eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc. 

i) Parties/day trips out. 

j) Purchase of alcohol. 

k) Activities already started or purchasing items before funding is awarded. 

l) Purchasing of vehicles. 

m) Purchasing insurance. 
 

4. Terms and conditions 

 

a) The expenditure must be within the powers of the Council. 

b) The project must benefit the Township community or environment and meet at least one of the Heywood 

Township priorities. 

c) Grants can only be made to non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank 

account. 

d) All grants must be spent/claimed within six months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be 

made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Heywood Township Delegated Sub 

Committee’s discretion. 

e) Applicants are limited to one Heywood Township grant in any two consecutive financial years.  

Community wide annual events in Heywood may be considered for funding at the discretion of Heywood 

Township Delegated Sub Committee. 

f) Grants are restricted to one application per one event/project. Applications from different user groups of 

the same project or centre for the same event at the same time are not eligible. 

g) The grant must be used for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use 

must be made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Heywood Township Delegated Sub 

Committee’s discretion. 

h) VAT on purchases relating to the project must only be included in the amount requested if it cannot be 

claimed back from HM Revenue and Customs. 

i) Applicants are responsible for ensuring that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), 

regulations (such as health and safety) and insurance relating to their scheme/event are in place. 

j) Applicants are responsible for applying to Rochdale Council if they intend to hold a public event on 

Council owned land. 

k) Groups applying for a project to work with children, young people or vulnerable adults must have policies 

and procedures in place that explain how these people will be protected and remain safe. 

l) If public liability insurance is required for a community project, it is the responsibility of the group to 

ensure adequate insurance is in place. 

m) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded 

by Township Funds. 

n) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are not 

adhered to. 

o) The Council’s approval must be sought for the disposal or transfer of any items acquired with the grant. 

p) Successful applicants must complete and return a Project Evaluation Form and provide copy 

invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as 

detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Heywood Township Office within 

one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return these documents will result in restrictions 

being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming of the grant monies. 

q) The Council reserves the right to add/change specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the 
purpose of the grant and/or the activities to be funded. 

 
 

Page 51



 

Form HT03 

3 

5. Decision Making Process 
 

a. All projects must be submitted on an application form with supporting documentation. 

b) Application forms are checked by Township Officers to see if the project meets the terms and conditions 

of the fund. 

c) Projects not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application forms will be referred back to 

the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation.  At this point applicants may be 

requested to supply additional information. 

d) Township Officers will refer projects for funding over £5,000 to the next Heywood Township Delegated 

Sub Committee for decision. 

e) Township Officers will use the officer scheme of delegation process for projects for funding of £5,000 or 

less. 

f) Decisions on Ward Funds are delegated to the Townships & Communities Manager in consultation with 

the Ward Councillors with the decision based on majority agreement.  Any disputes concerning 

allocation of Ward Funds will be referred to the next Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee for 

decision. 

g) Applicants will be advised of decisions in writing within 15 working days of the Heywood Township 

Delegated Sub Committee meeting. 

h) Township Officers will consult with the Chair and Ward Councillors about the future of a project when a 

Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has 

not be re-elected. 

i) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 
 

6. Commissioning Process 
 

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the specification 

and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs. 

b) Proposed schemes/projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant service to ensure 

alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 

maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

c) Any variations in costs or outcomes by either party should be negotiated and agreed between the 

provider and the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee prior to incurring any additional costs. 

d) Where the Township wish to vary the specification – the service provider will identify the implications of 

the change, ie time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc and additional costs, and agree the variations 

with the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee. 

e) Where the service provider may wish to vary the specification – the service provider should submit the 

variations to the Township Office with justification prior to incurring additional costs for consideration by 

the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee.  The Committee may decide not to accept the 

variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if the Committee accepts 

the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township Funds. 

f) The service provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the cost 

of the project on the Township Office receiving evidence of the start of the project as agreed.  Stage 

payments may be agreed. 

g) The service provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving 

the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports. 

h) Where a service provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Heywood 

Township Delegated Sub Committee may, after consultation with the service provider, withhold funds (or 

withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service). 

i) Any unapproved additional costs incurred by the service provider must be borne by the service provider 

unless agreed otherwise with the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee. 

j) Service providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices. 
Page 52


	Agenda
	8 Minutes
	9 Heywood Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 2017/18
	10 Objections to Traffic Regulation Order - Bradshaw Street and Vale Street, Heywood
	Objections to Traffic Regulation Order - Bradshaw Street and Vale Street, Heywood enc. 1

	11 Heywood Township Funds Review
	Appendix 1 - Heywood Township Funds Review
	Appendix 2 - Heywood Township Funds Review
	Appendix 3 - Heywood Township Funds Review
	Appendix 4 - Heywood Township Funds Review
	Appendix  5 - Heywood Township Funds Review
	Appendix 6 - Heywood Township Funds Review




